

Our intention is to have in-person meetings going forward. For the time being, we will hold the City Committee Meetings, Plan Commission, Council and most others at the Community Room at 933 Michigan Avenue. This in-person location will meet the legal requirement for our open meetings.

We will have a virtual option available, but the technology for the hybrid style meeting may not be reliable all of the time.

****AMENDED****

**CITY OF STEVENS POINT
PUBLIC POLICY AND GENERAL GOVERNMENT**

February 12, 2024 - 6:10 PM

(or immediately following previously scheduled meeting)

**Community Room
933 Michigan Avenue, Stevens Point, WI**

OR

Zoom Teleconferencing

Meeting ID: 832 1775 8191 | Passcode: 552949

By Computer: [Join](#)

By Phone: +1-312-626-6799 (US Chicago)

(A quorum of the City Council may attend this meeting)

AGENDA

Discussion and Possible Action on:

1. Roll Call.
2. License List:
 - A. **Change of Agent:** Schierl Sales Corporation, 2201 Madison St, Stevens Point, WI; Tony Tumbarello, 201 W Clark St, Stevens Point, agent at The Store #57, 201 W Clark St, Stevens Point, replacing Michelle Hizer.
 - B. **“Class B” Beer & Liquor License:** South Point of Stevens Point Inc. at 3057 Church St, Stevens Point for license period beginning March 1, 2024.
 - C. ****Extension of Licensed Premise:** SPAYHA, 801 Badger Ave, Stevens Point request for extension of premise to include the concession area, the 7.5' x 15' area "Beer Garden" which is immediately in front of the warming room, inside the hockey rink next to the bleachers, as well as the grass area from the rear of the building to the tree line and running the 130' length of the building, East to West. (See attached diagrams

and maps)

3. Request to Hold Event/Street Closing:
 - A. Point Bock Run on March 1 and 2, 2024.
4. Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 30, Building Code.
5. Ordinance Amendment – Section 16.06, Snow and Ice Removal.
6. Adjournment.

Meeting Rider

Any person who has special needs while attending this meeting or needing agenda materials for this meeting should contact the City Clerk as soon as possible to ensure a reasonable accommodation can be made. The City Clerk can be reached by telephone at (715) 346-1569, TDD # 346-1556 or by mail at 1515 Strongs Ave., Stevens Point, WI 54481.

Copies of ordinances, resolutions, reports and minutes of the committee meetings are on file at the office of the City Clerk for inspection during normal business hours from 7:30 a.m. to 4:00p.m.

LICENSE LIST
PUBLIC POLICY AND GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Monday, February 12, 2024

Change of Agent:

1. **Schierl Sales Corporation**, 2201 Madison St, Stevens Point, WI; Tony Tumbarello, 201 W Clark St, Stevens Point, agent at The Store #57, 201 W Clark St, Stevens Point, replacing Michelle Hizer.

"Class B" Beer & Liquor License:

1. **South Point of Stevens Point Inc.** at 3057 Church St, Stevens Point for license period beginning 03/01/2024.

Extension of Licensed Premise:

1. **SPAYHA**, 801 Badger Ave, Stevens Point request for extension of premise to include the concession area, the 7.5' x 15' area "Beer Garden" which is immediately in front of the warming room, inside the hockey rink next to the bleachers, as well as the grass area from the rear of the building to the tree line and running the 130' length of the building, East to West. (See attached diagrams and maps)

Soccer Fields

Parking Lot

Sidewalk

Temporary Fence when events are held

Grassy Area

40' x 80' Tent

Beer
Serving
Area
12' x 18'

20' x 30'
Food Prep
Tent

Chain Link Fence

Ice Hawks Building

Approximately 130'

Doors

eat. Always be your best."
- Joe Pavelski





SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION

Application Fee: \$35

- ☐ Exempt (Veterans, Schools, Funerals) ☐ Small (Less Than 100 Attendees)
☐ Medium (100-500 Attendees) ☒ Large (500+ Attendees)

OFFICE USE ONLY:

DATE: 12/8/23
AMOUNT: \$35
RECEIPT: 147493833

Insurance: Medium and Large Events are required by City Ordinance 12.28(6)b to submit a Certificate of Insurance providing minimum combined single bodily injury and property damage of \$1,000,000.

1. Please Select One: ☐ New Event ☒ Return Event as Previously Presented ☐ Return Event w/ Changes
2. Name of Event: POINT BOCK RUN
3. Name of Sponsoring Person or Organization: STEVENS POINT BREWERY
Address: 2617 WATER ST City: STEVENS POINT State: WI Zip Code: 54481
Is this a 501 (C-3) non-profit organization? ☐ Yes ☒ No If Yes, Tax Exempt CES#: _____
4. Contact Person: JULIE BIRRENKOTT
Phone: 715-252-3926 Email: JULIE@POINTBEER.COM Fax: _____
Address: 2617 WATER ST. City: STEVENS POINT State: WI Zip Code: 54481
5. Event Type: (Check All That Apply and Describe: Run/Walk, Concert, Festival, Picnic, Etc.)
☒ Athletic Event: 5-MILE RUN
☐ Financial Gain Event on City Property: _____
☐ Free Public Event on City Property: _____
☐ Private Event: _____
☐ Other: _____
6. Event Date(s): 3/1/24 5-7PM AND 3/2/24 10AM - 4PM Event Start Time: _____ Event End Time: _____
7. Set Up Date and Time: SET-UP WEDNESDAY-FRIDAY FEB. 28 - MARCH 1
8. Event Assembly Location: ACROSS THE STREET FROM THE STEVENS POINT BREWERY
Event Dispersal Location (if different from Assembly Location): _____
9. Alternative Location: ☐ Yes ☐ No if "Yes" please list location: _____
(usage of an alternative location must be communicated with the City Clerk's Office two business days prior to the event)
10. Estimated Attendance Of:
Participants/Vendors: 2000 Spectators/Attendees: 1000 Vehicles: _____ Animals: _____
11. Site Plan/Map of Event Attached [REQUIRED]: ☒ Yes ☐ No
(Include Locations of Vendors, Tents, Portable Restrooms, Etc.)
12. Street Closures Required? ☒ Yes ☐ No (If "Yes" Certificate of Insurance providing minimum combined single bodily injury and property damage of \$1,000,000 is required regardless of event size).
13. List of Street Blocks to Close for Event: SEE ATTACHED
14. Briefly Describe Your Event (You May Attach Additional Pages, If Needed):
ANNUAL POINT BOCK RUN IS A 5-MILE RUN, SATURDAY, MARCH 2ND, 2024. THE RUN WILL BEGIN AND END AT THE STEVENS POINT BREWERY. IT WILL BEGIN AT NOON
ON SATURDAY MARCH 2ND. THE RUN WILL DRAW 2000 RUNNERS OF ALL AGES AND ABILITIES WITH PROCEEDS DONATED TO PROMOTE AND SUPPORT
HEALTHY LIFESTYLES IN CENTRAL WISCONSIN. AFTER THE RUN, ENJOY BEVERAGES FROM THE STEVENS POINT BREWERY IN THE HEATED TENT ACROSS THE STREET
15. Describe any additional needs from the City or City Facilities (Barricades, Fencing, Garbage Cans, City Facilities, Parks, etc.):

16. Police Presence Needed? ☒ Police ☐ Auxiliary Officer (Contact Lt. Uitenbroek at buitenbroek@stevenspoint.com)
Please Explain: TWO CONTRACTUAL POLICE OFFICERS NEEDED

16. Will You Have Any of the Following? Check the Appropriate Boxes:

		Yes	No			Yes	No
1	Admission/Entry Fee	☒	☐	10	Erection of Tents/Temporary Structures—Area Greater than 400sq. ft. (Additional Permit Required—Contact Fire Dept & Ask for Officer on Duty: 715-344-1833)	☒	☐
2	Alcoholic Beverages Served (Additional Permit Required—Contact City Clerk: 715-346-1569)	☒	☐	11	Financial Gain Activity	☒	☐
3	Amplification Equipment	☒	☐	12	Fireworks—Please Explain Below: (Additional Permit Required—Contact Fire Department & Ask for Officer on Duty: 715-344-1833)	☐	☒
4	Amusement Rides/Inflatables (Certificate of Insurance Required—Contact City Clerk's Office: 715-346-1569)	☐	☒	13	Food Prepared/Served (Additional Permit Required—Contact Portage County Health Dept: 715-345-5350 AND Fire Dept—Email the Fire Marshal at: sinnert@stevenspoint.com)	☒	☐
5	Boats/Snowmobiles/ATVs	☐	☒	14	Horses/Animals	☐	☒
6	Concession Sales	☒	☐	15	Musical Bands	☐	☒
7	Drive Anything Into the Ground (Utility Location Required \$25—Contact Parks Department: 715-346-1531)	☒	☐	16	Portable Toilets	☒	☐
8	Electricity Needed	☒	☐	17	Vendor Displays/Sales	☐	☒
9	Erection of Tents/Temporary Structures—Area Less than 400sq. ft.	☐	☒	18	Usage of the Square (Farmers Market Runs May 1st - October 31st—Contact: stevenspointfarmersmarket@gmail.com)	☐	☒

Additional Explanation Here:

I understand the filing of this application does not ensure the issuance of this permit. I also understand that all Special Event organizers and participants must comply with all applicable City Ordinances, traffic rules, park rules, state health laws, fire codes, and liquor licensing regulations. Additional fees such as park facilities, tent, and firework permits are in addition to the fees submitted for the Special Event Application.

NON-DISCRIMINATION, HOLD HARMLESS, INDEMNIFICATION AND DEFENSE

THE PERSON OR GROUP NAMED AS THE SPONSORING ORGANIZATION ON THIS APPLICATION WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONDUCT OF THE SPECIAL EVENT AND FOR THE CONDITION OF THE FACILITY. THE SPONSORING ORGANIZATION WILL NOT DENY ANY PERSON ANY BENEFIT OR OTHERWISE SUBJECT ANY PERSON TO DISCRIMINATION BECAUSE OF RACE, COLOR, CREED, NATIONAL ORIGIN, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, DISABILITY, RELIGION, GENDER IDENTITY, OR MEMBERSHIP IN ANY PROTECTED CLASS.

BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION, THE SPONSORING PERSON OR ORGANIZATION LISTED ABOVE AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD THE CITY AND ITS OFFICERS, OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS HARMLESS AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, LIABILITY, LOSS, DAMAGE, OR EXPENSE INCURRED BY THE CITY ON ACCOUNT OF ANY INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON OR ANY DAMAGE TO PROPERTY CAUSED BY OR RESULTING FROM THE ACTIVITIES FOR WHICH THE PERMIT IS GRANTED.

NOTHING CONTAINED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT IS INTENDED TO BE A WAIVER OR ESTOPPELS OF THE CONTRACTING MUNICIPALITY OR ITS INSURER TO RELY UPON THE LIMITATIONS, DEFENSES, AND IMMUNITIES CONTAINED WITHIN WISCONSIN LAW, INCLUDING THOSE CONTAINED WITHIN WISCONSIN STATUTES §§ 893.80, 895.52, AND 345.05. TO THE EXTENT THAT INDEMNIFICATION IS AVAILABLE AND ENFORCEABLE, THE CITY OF STEVENS POINT OR ITS INSURER(S) SHALL NOT BE LIABLE IN INDEMNITY OR CONTRIBUTION FOR AN AMOUNT GREATER THAN THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY FOR MUNICIPAL CLAIMS ESTABLISHED BY WISCONSIN LAW.

I hereby certify that the foregoing facts concerning my Special Event are true to the best of my knowledge:

Signature of Applicant: *Celia Borenix* Date: 12/8/2024

*****Signature of Approval*****

Signature of City Clerk:

Date:

SATURDAY MARCH 2ND

Both West-bound lanes of County Hwy HH from Whiting Ave. to West River Dr. will be closed to traffic. West-bound traffic will be re-routed to the right-hand East-bound lane during the race. From approx 11:45 a.m. 1:15 p.m.

Water Street CLOSED from Francis to Whiting Ave. from approx 11:45 a.m. – 1:15 p.m.

Water St CLOSED from Francis to Matilda from approx. 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

Whiting Ave will be CLOSED to County Hwy HH until all runners have returned past the intersection of Water St and Whiting Ave.

West River Dr. from HH to West Maple Ridge Dr will be completely closed to all traffic from approx. 11:45-1:15 p.m. or until the street is cleared. Be on the lookout for runners/walkers after 1:15 PM and use caution. **THANK YOU!**



STEVPOI-02

TARBUCKLE

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

12/7/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
Risk Strategies Madison
1103 Hunter Dr Ste 100
Mount Pleasant, WI 53406

CONTACT NAME: **Amber Krogman**
PHONE (A/C, No, Ext): **(608) 203-3873** FAX (A/C, No): **(877) 254-8586**
E-MAIL ADDRESS: **akrogman@risk-strategies.com**

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC #

INSURER A: **Secura Insurance****22543**

INSURER B:

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

INSURED

Stevens Point Brewery
2617 Water St
Stevens Point, WI 54481

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR LTR	TYPE OF INSURANCE	ADDL SUBR INSD WVD	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMITS
A	☒ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY					
	CLAIMS-MADE ☒ OCCUR		CP3401383	2/28/2024	3/5/2024	EACH OCCURRENCE \$ 1,000,000
						DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence) \$ 100,000
						MED EXP (Any one person) \$ 0
						PERSONAL & ADV INJURY \$ 1,000,000
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:					GENERAL AGGREGATE \$ 1,000,000
	POLICY ☐ PROJECT ☐ LOC ☐					PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$ 1,000,000
	OTHER:					Liquor Liab \$ 1,000,000
	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY					COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident) \$
	ANY AUTO OWNED AUTOS ONLY ☐ SCHEDULED AUTOS ☐					BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$
	HIRED AUTOS ONLY ☐ NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY ☐					BODILY INJURY (Per accident) \$
						PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident) \$
						\$
	UMBRELLA LIAB ☐ OCCUR ☐					EACH OCCURRENCE \$
	EXCESS LIAB ☐ CLAIMS-MADE ☐					AGGREGATE \$
	DED ☐ RETENTION \$ ☐					\$
	WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY	Y/N				PER STATUTE ☐ OTH-ER ☐
	ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH)	N/A				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below					E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$
						E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
2024 Point Bock Run 3/1/2024 - 3/2/2024

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Evidence of Insurance

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Amber Krogman

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



TO: Public Policy & General Government Committee

FROM: Ryan Kernosky, Director of Community Development

DATE: September 12, 2024

RE: **Ordinance Amendments to Chapter 30 (Building Code)**

Public Policy & General Government Committee-

Chapter 30, which is the city's building code, is being updated to reflect a title change from Building Inspection Superintendent to Chief Building Official. This change in title is a result of the wage study performed last year and has not changed the position in any way.

Another change is to remove the language limiting the size of certain buildings out of chapter 30.04 and relocating it to the zoning ordinance Chapter 23. Here again, no significant change to the code itself, just a clarification and relocation to Chapter 23.

The final change was to increase the maximum general penalty from Five Hundred Dollars (\$500) to One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000). This is based on the cost of construction projects, as it has increased over the last few years.

Staff recommends approval as presented.

CHAPTER 30
BUILDING CODE

Section

- 30.01 General Provisions
- 30.02 Definitions
- 30.03 Building Inspector and Permits
- 30.04 Accessory Structures
- 30.05 Inspections Required
- 30.06 Swimming Pools
- 30.07 Regulations for Moving or Razing Buildings
- 30.08 Building Numbering
- 30.09 Plumbing Service
- 30.10 Penalties

30.01 GENERAL PROVISIONS

(1) Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all buildings and structures within the City of Stevens Point and the installation of electrical, plumbing, mechanical, heating, ventilating, air conditioning or other systems or equipment within or associated with these buildings or structures. The provisions of this code supplement the laws of the State of Wisconsin pertaining to construction and use and the Zoning Code of the City and any amendments thereto subsequent to the date this Chapter was adopted. The provisions of this Chapter in no way supersede or nullify the City's Zoning Code.

(2) Title. These regulations shall be known and cited as "Municipal Building Code"; and shall be construed to secure their expressed and implied intent and to ensure public safety, health, and welfare insofar as they are dependent upon building construction, modification, maintenance, and use.

(3) Conflict:

- (a) Any violations of previous versions of this Chapter shall continue to be adjudicated pursuant to the provisions of the version of this Chapter that was in effect at the time such violations occurred.
- (b) The provisions of this chapter shall not be construed to prevent the enforcement of other ordinances or regulations of the City or of the State of Wisconsin which prescribe standards other than those provided herein. In case of conflicts among such regulations, the most restrictive standard shall apply.
- (c) If any part of this ordinance is explicitly prohibited by federal or state statute, that part shall not be enforced.
- (d) No provision of this code shall be construed to repeal, modify, or constitute an alternative to any lawful zoning regulations.
- (e) Invalidity of Part. If any part, division, section, or portion of this code is adjudged to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalidated by a court of competent jurisdiction, the enforceability of the remainder of this code shall not be affected thereby.

(4) Codes adopted. The City adopts the following codes as minimum standards of construction for dwellings, public buildings, places of employment, accessory structures, garages and other structures as specifically mentioned and also the installation of electrical, plumbing, mechanical, heating, ventilating, air conditioning and other systems and equipment associated with these structures or premises. The adoption of these codes recognizes the intent of the State of Wisconsin to provide for a uniformity of standards within the state. The adoption of these codes is required by the State of Wisconsin to provide for a transfer of jurisdiction allowing the City to administer and enforce these codes.

(a) Uniform Dwelling Code ("UDC") adopted. The Wisconsin Administrative Code provisions describing and defining regulations with respect to one and two-family dwellings codified in Chapters SPS 320 through SPS 325 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code are hereby adopted and by reference made a part of this Chapter as if fully set forth herein. Residential detached garages and accessory buildings are subject to the Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code for One and Two-Family Dwellings and are included within the scope of this Code. Any act required to be performed or prohibited by an Administrative Code provision incorporated herein by reference is required or prohibited by this Chapter. Any future amendments, revisions, modification, or renumbering of the Administrative Code provisions incorporated herein are hereby adopted by and incorporated into this Chapter to secure uniform statewide regulation of one and two-family dwellings in this City. Such Administrative Code chapters may also be referred to as the UDC or residential building code.

(b) State Commercial Building Code ("CBC") adopted. Chapters SPS 360 through 366, Wisconsin Administrative Code (Wisconsin State Commercial Building Code for multi-family dwellings, public buildings and places of employment) and Chapters SPS 375 through 379 are hereby adopted and made a part of this Chapter with respect to those classes of buildings to which this building code specifically applies. Any future amendments, revisions, modifications, and renumbering of said Chapters SPS 360—366 and 375—379 are hereby adopted by and incorporated into this Chapter. Such Administrative Code chapters may also be referred to as the CBC or commercial building code.

(c) National Fuel Gas Code and Liquefied Petroleum Gas Code adopted. The National Fuel Gas Code NFPA 54 ANSI Z223.1, the Liquid Petroleum Gas Code NFPA 58, the documents listed in Chapter 2 of both codes, and any subsequent revisions to NFPA 54 and NFPA 58 and other listed documents are adopted and by reference made a part of this chapter as if fully set forth herein.

1. Application: The National Fuel Gas Code and the Liquefied Petroleum Gas Code are safety codes that shall apply to the installation of fuel gas piping systems to appliances, equipment and related accessories as listed within each code.

2. Gas piping, appliances, equipment and related accessories: New fuel gas piping systems to appliances, equipment and related accessories shall conform to the minimum standards of the National Fuel Gas Code and/or the Liquefied Petroleum Gas Code as applicable, the minimum installation requirements of the manufacturer, other provisions of Stevens Point Ordinances and any other minimum codes and standards as may apply in each separate installation as applicable.

New installations, alterations, additions, extensions, repairs or any other work involving fuel gas piping systems within the City shall conform to the most restrictive application of the above codes and standards.

(d) State electrical code adopted. The provisions and regulations of Wisconsin

Administrative Code Chapter SPS 316 in its entirety are hereby made a part of this chapter by reference and shall extend over and govern all electrical wiring installed, altered, repaired and presently existing in the city. Any further amendments, revisions, modifications, and renumbering of said Wisconsin Statutes and Wisconsin Administrative Code herein adopted shall be made part of this chapter as if set out fully herein.

(e) State plumbing code adopted. The provisions and regulations of Wis. Stats. Chs. 101 and 145, and Wisconsin Administrative Code Chapters SPS 325 and 381 through 387 are hereby made a part of this Chapter by reference and shall extend over and govern all new and existing plumbing installed, altered, repaired and maintained within the City. Any further amendments, revisions modifications, and renumbering of said Wisconsin Statutes and Wisconsin Administrative Code herein adopted shall be made part of this chapter.

(f) Credentials. Wisconsin Administrative Code Chapter SPS 305 governing licensing and credentialing shall hereby be adopted. Any further amendments, revisions, modifications, and renumber of said Wisconsin Statutes and Wisconsin Administrative Code chapters herein adopted shall be made part of this chapter. In addition to the requirements of this paragraph, the following provisions shall apply:

1. A residential property owner who installs, repairs, or maintains electrical wiring on premises that the property owner owns and occupies as a single-family principal residence may be issued a permit for such work without holding a credential for performing such work, provided that the City may issue a permit to the residential property owner only if the person desiring such permit shows that the person is competent to do such work in conformity with all rules and regulations governing installation of electrical wiring in residences, and such person pays the same fee as required of electrical contractors.

2. Unlicensed persons installing any portion of an electrical system wiring at a property other than a single family residence owned and occupied by the person performing the work, whether or not for compensation, shall be in violation of this section and subject to the penalties set forth in this chapter.

3. A residential property owner who installs, repairs, or maintains plumbing on premises that the property owner owns and occupies as their single-family principal residence, provided that the City may issue a permit to the residential property owner only if the person desiring such permit shows that the person is competent to do such work in conformity with all rules and regulations governing installation of plumbing, and such person pays the same fee as required of plumbing contractors. This section shall not apply to connections to municipal storm or sanitary sewers or water mains or their laterals.

4. A plumbing permit application submitted by the applicant will not be approved unless the individual or company listed to be performing the work is qualified as required by the Wisconsin Administrative Code provisions governing plumbing.

5. Unlicensed persons installing any portion of a plumbing system at a property other than a single family residence owned and occupied by the person performing the work, whether or not for compensation, shall be in violation of this section and subject to the penalties set forth in this chapter.

(5) Existing structures:

The following provisions shall apply to existing structures within the City. The enumeration of such provisions, however, shall not preclude the application of provisions contained elsewhere in this Code from applying to existing structures as either expressly or implicitly indicated in the Code:

(a) An existing building proposed to be occupied as a one- or two-family dwelling, when such building was not previously so occupied or used as a one or two-family dwelling.

(b) Alterations, regardless of cost, made to an existing dwelling when deemed necessary in the opinion of the Building Inspector shall comply with the requirements of this chapter for new buildings.

(c) Roof coverings. Whenever more than 25 percent of the roof covering by area of a dwelling is replaced in any 12-month period, all new roof covering shall be in conformity with applicable sections of this chapter.

(d) Repairs. Repairs for the purpose of maintenance, or replacements in any existing building or structure, which do not involve the structural portions of the building or structures, or which do not effect room arrangement, light and ventilation, access to or efficiency of any exit stairways or exits, fire protection, or exterior aesthetic appearance and which do not increase a given occupancy use, shall be deemed minor repairs. Permits and licensing are not required for minor repairs, unless the type of work requires a permit per department list, which shall be approved by the Common Council and posted on the City's website. Changes to exterior aesthetic appearance shall not require permits unless the structure is located within an Historic District.

(e) Alterations When Not Permitted. When any existing building or structure, which for any reason whatsoever does not conform to the regulations of this Code, has deteriorated from any cause whatsoever to an extent greater than fifty (50) percent of the equalized value of the building or structure, no alterations or moving of such building or structure shall be permitted. Any such building or structure may be considered a menace to public safety and welfare and may be ordered vacated and thereafter demolished and debris removed from the premises.

(f) Alterations and Repairs Required. When any of the structural members of any building or structure have deteriorated from any cause whatsoever to less than their required strength, the owner of such a building or structure shall cause such structural members to be restored to their required strength per the respective adopted code. Unless and until such repairs occur, such structure shall be considered a menace to

public safety and shall be vacated and thereafter no further occupancy or use of the same shall be permitted until the regulations of this Code are complied with.

(g) **Extent of Deterioration.** The amount and extent of deterioration of any existing building or structure shall be determined by the Building Inspector.

(h) **Use of Unsanitary Building.** It shall be unlawful to occupy, use, or permit the occupancy or use of any building or structure that is so unsanitary, dilapidated, deteriorated, out of repair, or without running potable water that it is unfit for human habitation, occupancy or use. The Building Inspector has the authority to determine if a building is unfit for use under this section. Until the regulations of this Code have been complied with, such building shall not be used for human occupancy, habitation, or use.

(i) **Responsibility.** This chapter shall be binding alike upon every owner of a building or structure and every person who is in charge of or is responsible for or who causes the design, construction, alteration or repair of any building or structure or related electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating or air conditioning equipment in the City.

(6) Sidewalks

No main building shall be erected without, prior to occupancy, having required sidewalks installed along that part of any public street that fronts the lot boundaries of the parcel on which the building is constructed. Such sidewalk installation requirement may be waived by the Building Inspector where there is no City plan for sidewalk installation. Any such sidewalk shall be constructed to the standards directed by the Department of Public Works.

30.02 DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Code, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings assigned to them in this section. Words and phrases defined in state statutes, administrative code chapters, or other municipal code sections referenced or adopted herein shall be as defined in the referenced codes, statutes, or regulations. Words and phrases not otherwise defined, shall have the meanings accepted by common usage or meanings generally recognized within the trades to which the term or phrase applies.

Accessory Building or Use - A building, use, or activity which is conducted or located on the premises of the principal use and serves, is clearly incidental to, is subordinate in purpose to, and is clearly operated and maintained solely for the comfort, convenience, necessity, or benefit of the occupant, employee, customer, or visitor of or to the principal use.

Addition - Any new construction whereby an existing building or structure, or building or structure in course of construction, is increased in footprint area, or volume content. For buildings or structures in the course of construction, "increased" shall mean an increase

beyond the footprint or volume identified in the plans upon which the building permit was issued.

Adjoining Lot Line - The line dividing adjoining lots, plots of land, or parcels of land of different or same ownership.

Alteration - Any change or modification other than an addition or repair to a building or to electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating, air conditioning and other systems within a building or occupancy within a building.

Approved - Acceptable to the Building Inspector. (Approval is not to be construed as an assumption of any legal responsibility for the design or construction of the dwelling or building component.)

Building Inspector - The officer charged with the administration and enforcement of this Code as part of his/her regularly authorized duty. "Building Official", and "Authority Having Jurisdiction" when used in this Code shall refer to the Building Inspector. This term is further defined and explained in Section 30.03(1)(b) below.

Conditional Approval - Approval granted by the Department with the condition that the proposed building shall meet all regulations of this code, other municipal ordinances, and all laws of the State of Wisconsin.

Cubic Contents - The actual cubic contents enclosed within the outer surfaces of the exterior walls, outer surfaces of the roof, and the finished surfaces of the lowest floors of a building or structure. Does not include the contents of enclosed courts which are open to the sky.

Department - The Community Development Department of the City of Stevens Point.

Detached Garage - A private garage entirely separated from the principal building.

Dwelling - A building or portion thereof designed or used exclusively for residential occupancy, including single family dwellings, two-family dwellings, multiple-family dwellings and apartment hotels.

Established Grade - The grade of the street as established by ordinance at the center line of the street.

Fire Limits - All areas zoned Central Business Zoning District and the South Side Business District. (As defined by Map #1180)

Footings - That portion of the foundation of a structure which spreads and transmits loads directly to the soil or the piles.

Foundation - The supporting structure as a whole, below the lowest floor upon which rests the superstructure of a building or structure.

Garage - A building or portion thereof in which a motor vehicle containing gasoline, distillate, or other volatile, flammable liquid in its tank is stored, repaired, or kept.

Garage, Private - A detached accessory building or portion of a main building housing the motor vehicles of the occupants or owner of the one or two family dwelling.

Grade, Lumber - The classification of lumber in regard to stress and grade.

Lintel - The beam or girder placed over an opening in a wall which supports the wall construction above.

Loads. Dead Load - The weight of walls, floors, partitions, roofs, and other structural parts of a building or structure.

Live Load - All imposed, transient, moving loads, or loads due to impact, and including movable partitions in a building or structure other than dead loads.

Masonry, Solid - Masonry built without hollow spaces.

Person - The word "person" shall mean any individual, firm, association, corporation, or body politic, and includes any receiver, assignee, or similar representative thereof.

Principal Building - A single main building or structure on a lot for specific use or occupancies.

Repair - The reconstruction or renewal of any part of an existing building for the purpose of its maintenance or to correct damage. The words "repair" or "repairs" shall not apply to any change of construction type or structural components.

Stairway - Three or more risers shall constitute a stairway.

Square Footage of Building - The actual area in square feet enclosed by the exterior perimeter of the building walls on each separate floor level, measured from the exterior perimeter or as defined by the building type's respective code.

Unusual Construction - Any construction methods or materials not covered in this code.

(1) Tenses and usage.

- (a) Words used in the singular include the plural, and vice versa.
- (b) Words used in the present tense include the future tense, and vice versa.
- (c) The words "must," "will," "shall," and "may not" are mandatory.
- (d) "May" is permissive.

(2) Conjunctions. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the following conjunctions have the following meanings:

(a) "And" indicates that all connected items or provisions apply;

(b) "Or" indicates that the connected items or provisions may apply singly or in combination;

(c) "Either or" indicates that the connected items or provisions apply singly, but not in combination.

30.03 BUILDING INSPECTOR AND PERMITS

(1) General. The Department of Community Development – Division of Inspection Services is hereby created and the executive official in charge thereof shall be known as the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~.

(a) Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~. The Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~ shall be the executive official in charge of and responsible for all activities of the city building inspection division. All division inspectors, officers, technical assistants and employees shall report to the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~ who shall in turn report directly to the Community Development Director. The Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~ shall have the qualifications as required in his/her job description, which is on file in the City Human Resources department.

(b) Building Inspector. When used in this chapter, the term "Building Inspector" shall be liberally defined as the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~ and/or a commercial or UDC Building Inspector, a commercial or UDC electrical inspector, a commercial or UDC plumbing inspector or a commercial or UDC HVAC inspector and any duly appointed deputy or assistant officially authorized by the City to carry out the administrative and enforcement functions prescribed herein. The listed inspectors are not intended to indicate separate individuals. Rather it is intended to describe the range of inspector responsibilities and certifications that are necessary to complete the division of inspection services. Inspectors may hold any combination of inspector certifications to fit the needs of the inspection division. In no case shall an inspector do plan review or inspections without Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services certification for the plans to be reviewed or the work to be inspected.

(c) Personal liability relief. No inspector, officer or employee charged with the administration and enforcement of this Chapter or Chapter 21 of the RMC, while acting on behalf of the City, shall thereby be rendered liable personally, and such inspector, officer or employee is hereby relieved of all personal liability for any damage occurring to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted in the discharge of his or her official duties. Any suit initiated against any City inspector, officer or employee, because of an act performed by that person in the lawful discharge of his or her duties under the provisions of this Chapter or Chapter 21, shall be defended by the legal representative of the City until final termination of such proceedings. Such City employees and officials shall further enjoy any and all immunities, defenses, and limitations of liability afforded under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver, express or implied, of any such protections. No inspector, officer or employee shall be liable for any costs in any action, suit or

proceeding instituted in pursuance of the provisions of this Chapter or Chapter 21, and such employee, acting in good faith and without malice, shall be free of liability for acts performed under any of its provisions or by reason of any act or omission in the performance of his or her official duties in connection therewith.

(d) Rights. The Building Inspector or authorized agent shall have the power and authority at all reasonable hours, for any proper purpose, to enter upon any public or private premises and make inspection thereof and to require the production of the permit for any building, plumbing, electrical, or heating work being done or the required license therefore. No person shall interfere with or refuse to permit access to any such premises to the above-described representatives of the municipality while in the performance of their duties.

(e) Power to stop work. Whenever any work is being done contrary to the provisions of this code, or is being done in an unsafe or dangerous manner, the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~ may order the work stopped by notice in writing served on any person engaged in the doing or causing of such work or a person who owns or controls the premises upon which the work is being performed, and any such person shall either forthwith stop such work or cause the work to be ceased until authorized by the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~ to recommence and proceed with the work.

(f) Order to Discontinue Occupancy or Use. The Building Inspector may issue an order to the owner of any building, structure, dwelling unit or equipment thereon, or to the person occupying or using any such building, structure, dwelling unit or equipment, to discontinue such occupancy or use if the building, structure, dwelling unit or equipment is, in the judgment of the inspector, in an unsafe condition or unfit for human habitation.

(g) Power to order building to be vacated. Whenever any building or portion thereof is being used or occupied contrary to the provisions of this code, the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~ may order such use or occupancy discontinued, and the building or portion thereof shall be vacated and a notice served on any person using or causing such use or occupancy, and such person shall vacate such building or portion thereof within the timeframe provided by the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~, or make the building or portion thereof comply with the requirements of this code provided. However, in the event of an emergency, the notice provisions in this section shall not be required prior to the occupancy or use being ordered to cease.

(h) Use Discontinued. Any building, structure, or premises, or any part thereof, which is vacated for a continuous period of six (6) months or more by any cause whatsoever shall not thereafter be occupied or used until approved by the Building Inspector if the Building Inspector determines that such period of vacancy may jeopardize public safety or health if allowed to resume without actions to ensure that the resumption of use or occupancy can occur safely.

(i) Placarding of Unfit or Illegally Occupied Buildings.

1. If a building or any part thereof is unfit for human habitation, occupancy, or

use, or may be in danger of structural collapse, the inspector shall post a placard on the premises containing the following words: "Unfit For Human Habitation, Occupancy or Use." The Building Inspector shall prohibit the use of the building for human habitation by requiring the owner to vacate and prohibit further occupancy or use until the necessary repairs have been made.

2. Orders and placards shall remain effective until the required repairs or alterations have been made or demolition and removal have been completed. No person may alter or remove a posted order or placard, nor occupy, use or enter a posted or placarded building, structure or dwelling unit, except for the purpose of making the required repairs or alterations, without written permission from the Building Inspector.

(j) Not to Engage in Business. It shall be unlawful for an inspector to engage in, either directly or indirectly, the business of their respective trade. Inspectors shall have no financial interest in any concern in such business within the City of Stevens Point while holding office as an inspector. This shall apply to all trade credentials the inspector holds while in office. Any violation of this subsection shall be sufficient cause for dismissal.

(2) Permits required. No person shall excavate for, erect or construct, nor add to, enlarge, improve, repair, alter, convert, extend, move, or demolish any building or structure; perform any work with regards to electrical, plumbing, heating and ventilation, or cause the same to be done without first obtaining a permit therefore from the Division of Inspection Services. A list of activities for which a permit is required is on file in the department. The enumeration of such list does not preclude the Building Inspector from determining that an activity not appearing on the list nevertheless requires a permit, provided that the activity is within the general description of activities requiring permits contained in this paragraph.

(3) Historic Overlay District: In addition to the permits required for alterations and changes which affect buildings, any structure included in any Historic Overlay District shall be required to obtain a building permit for the installation of siding, windows and removal of original architectural details representative of an architecture style, a unique design element, or material.

(4) Permit fees

(a) The fees for activities and services performed by the city in carrying out its responsibilities under this code shall be as indicated in the most recently adopted Common Council fee schedule for the Community Development Department.

(b) Before any permit required by this code may be issued, the applicant must pay the appropriate fees as required by this code and the fee schedule under part (a).

(c) Before any permit required by this code may be issued, the applicant and/or property owner must be current on all personal property taxes within the city.

(d) Recreational Impact Fee. The City of Stevens Point hereby determines the

construction of residential dwelling units creates a demand for recreational facilities within the City. Therefore, it is the policy of the City to assess a portion of the costs for those facilities to the builders of new dwelling units in the City. New dwelling units shall be assessed an amount as indicated in the most recently Common Council adopted Department of Community Development Fee Schedule. Newly-approved mobile home parks shall be assessed an amount as indicated in the most recently Common Council adopted Department of Community Development Fee Schedule. This fee shall be due before issuing a building permit. This fee shall only apply to new construction and shall not apply to remodeling or existing units or the moving of existing mobile homes, unless such remodeling or moving results in an overall increase in the total amount of units.

(5) Application for permit.

(a) An application for a permit shall be submitted by the property owner or his/her authorized agent and shall comply with this Chapter and Wisconsin Administrative Codes SPS 320 and 361. The application shall include a Division of Inspection Services approved City of Stevens Point Permit Application Form in addition to any required information set forth in this section. Any application that is not fully completed, as determined by the Building Inspector, shall not be considered submitted for compliance with this section. Paying for the permit does not constitute automatic issuance of a permit.

(6) Inspection Division to Issue Permit.

(a) The Building Inspector shall not issue a permit until the building plans have been conditionally approved. After being conditionally approved, the plans and specifications shall not be altered in any respect which involves any of the ordinances, laws, or orders, or which involves the safety of the building, except with the written consent of the Building Inspector filed with such application.

(b) If the Building Inspector determines that submitted plans are inadequate, the Building Inspector may issue a permit for a part of the building prior to receiving the plans and specifications for the remaining portions of the building. It shall be unlawful to commence work on any premises, building, or alteration before the permit for such work has been issued. The issuance of a permit upon the plans and specifications shall not prevent the Building Inspector from thereafter requiring the correction of errors in said plans and specifications or from ordering such work to cease if it is being conducted in violation of any City Ordinance, Wisconsin Statute, Wisconsin Administrative Code Provision, or lawful orders issued pursuant thereto.

(c) For the construction of buildings requiring approval of building plans by the Department of Safety and Professional Services of the State of Wisconsin, no permit shall be issued until such approved plans are received by the Building Inspector.

(7) Waiver of Some Requirements. At the option of the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~, plans data, specifications and survey information need not
 —be submitted with
 (7) an application for permit provided the proposed construction is sufficiently

described in the application for permit.

(8) Posting of building permit: Except as specifically authorized by the Building Inspector, every permit issued shall be posted or displayed in a conspicuous location at the job site prior to commencement of construction and shall remain posted until all work authorized by such permit is completed and inspected.

(9) Expiration of permit.

(a) The permit shall become void unless operations are commenced within four (4) months from the date thereof, or if the building or work authorized by such permit is suspended at any time after work is commenced, for a period of sixty (60) days. This section may be waived at the discretion of the ~~Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent.

(b) Permits for new one- or two-family dwellings shall expire after two years.

(c) Permits for new commercial construction shall expire after two years.

(d) Permits for any commercial alterations or additions valued at or over \$500,000.00 will expire after two years.

(e) Permits for any commercial alteration or addition valued under \$500,000.00 will expire after one year.

(f) Permits for residential roofing, siding, decks, accessory structures and other similar projects will expire after six months.

(g) Permits for electrical, plumbing, HVAC or other similar systems will expire after six months unless the value of such work is over \$50,000.00, in which case the permit will expire after one year.

(h) Permits for electrical, plumbing, HVAC or other similar systems in conjunction with new construction or alterations and additions will expire at the same time as the construction permit expires, regardless of the date issued.

(i) Permits for demolition and razing will expire after 90 days.

(j) Permits for moving structures will expire after 90 days.

* Exception for subsections (4) and (9) of this section: New permit or renewed permit fees for incomplete projects shall be the same fees of the last permit issued for the same project. The expiration time for each subsequent permit or renewal for the same project will be half of the prior time limit.

(10) Inspector may revoke permit.

(a) The Building Inspector may revoke any permit or approval issued under the regulations of this code and may stop construction or use of approved new

materials, equipment, methods of construction, devices, or appliances for any of the following reasons:

(i) Whenever there is a violation of any regulation of this code or of any other provision of the City Ordinances, Wisconsin or federal laws and regulations, or lawful orders issued pursuant to the same which reasonably relate to the subject matter of this Chapter.

(ii) Whenever the continuance of any construction becomes dangerous to property or the safety of the public.

(iii) Whenever there is any violation of any condition or provisions of the application for permit or of the permit.

(iv) Whenever in the opinion of the Building Inspector there is inadequate supervision provided on the job site.

(v) Whenever any false statement or misrepresentation has been made in the application for permit, plans, drawings, data specifications, or certified lot or plot plan on which the issuance of the permit or approval was based.

(vi) Whenever there is a violation of any of the conditions of an approval or occupancy given by the Building Inspector for the use of any new materials, equipment, methods of construction devices, or appliances.

(b) Whenever the Building Inspector revokes a permit under Paragraph (a) of this subsection, the Building Inspector shall comply with the following:

(i) The notice revoking a permit, certificate of occupancy or approval shall be in writing and may be served upon the applicant for the permit, owner of the premises, and the agent of the owner, if any, or on the person having charge of construction.

(ii) A revocation placard shall also be posted by the Building Inspector upon the building, structure, equipment, or premises in question.

(iii) After the notice is served and posted as indicated in parts (i) and (ii) above, it shall be unlawful for any person to proceed thereafter with any construction whatsoever on the premises, and the permit which has been so revoked shall be null and void. Before any construction or operation is again resumed on the premises, a new permit shall be procured and fees paid therefore in the same manner as otherwise required under this code for issuance for the initial permit. Thereafter the resumption of any construction or operation shall be in compliance with the regulation of this code.

(11) Stop work order: If the Building Inspector finds at any time that work on any building, structure or electrical, mechanical, plumbing or HVAC system is being performed contrary to the provisions of this chapter or in an unsafe or dangerous manner, the Building Inspector may order such work immediately stopped by issuing a written stop work order. Such order shall be posted in a conspicuous location at the job site or shall be served personally by the Building Inspector upon the property owner, the

owner's agent, or the person responsible for the work. A stop work order shall specify the nature of the violation and shall state the conditions under which work will be permitted to resume. Any person who shall continue to work in, on or about a building, structure or electrical, plumbing or HVAC system after a stop work order has been issued, except to complete such work as directed by the Building Inspector to correct the violation or unsafe condition, may be issued a citation for a violation of this chapter and shall be subject to penalties and forfeitures as described herein.

30.04 Accessory Structures

(1) Fees. The fees for activities and services performed by the city in carrying out its responsibilities under this section shall be as indicated in the most recently adopted common council fee schedule.

(2) Detached Garages. One and two family residential detached garages or structures shall be constructed in accordance with Chapters SPS 320-325 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, also known as the Uniform Dwelling Code. Any further amendments, revisions and modifications of said Wisconsin Statutes and Wisconsin Administrative Code herein adopted are intended to be made part of this chapter.

(3) Commercial accessory structures. Accessory structures on parcels zoned non-residential shall be constructed according to the minimum standards of the Commercial Building Code.

(3) —

30.05 Inspections Required

(1) Timely inspections. The permit applicant, owner or an authorized representative shall notify the Building Inspector after completion of each phase of construction and shall request all inspections as itemized in sections orally or in writing. The Building Inspector shall make every reasonable attempt to complete all inspections in a timely manner. Work on subsequent phases of construction shall not proceed until required inspections have been completed and approval has been granted by the Building Inspector. Construction may proceed on a one- or a two-family dwelling if an inspection has not been performed within two business days after proper notification has been given, and occupancy may occur five business days after a request for final

inspection if the final inspection has not yet been performed.. Construction may proceed on a commercial structure if an inspection has not been performed within five business days after proper notification has been given. The Building Inspector may also allow work to proceed when specific circumstances prevent the completion of an inspection within the allotted time period.

(2) Responsibility to call for inspection. It is the responsibility of the permit applicant, owner or an authorized representative to notify the Building Inspector that the construction or installation is ready for inspection. It is not the responsibility of the Building Inspector to track or estimate the time interval before the next inspection is needed, nor to notify the permit applicant that the permit has expired. The Building Inspector shall have the right and authority to order the removal of all coverings which may have been placed over such work before same has been inspected.

(3) Erosion control and site maintenance inspection. Erosion control measures shall be inspected after installation and concurrently with other required inspections throughout the construction period. Site maintenance and control of construction debris will be inspected concurrently with other required inspections.

(4) Construction inspections.

(a) **Foundation reinforcement inspection.** The placement of reinforcement shall be inspected where the reinforcement is required for code compliance prior to pouring concrete.

(b) **Drain tile inspection.** Below-grade drain tile systems shall be inspected after placement of tiles, washed stone and sump pits but prior to backfilling (exterior tiles) or placement of basement slab floors (interior tiles).

(c) **Footing and foundation inspection.** Footings shall be inspected after forms have been set, prior to pouring concrete. Foundations shall be inspected after forms have been removed and required insulation and waterproofing are in place, but prior to backfilling.

(d) **Under slab or under floor inspections.** The inspection of the basement floor or slab floor area before concrete is placed shall include the following: any required structural reinforcement, any underfloor plumbing, electrical, or HVAC; any interior drain tile with base course; the structural base course for the floor slab if required; the underfloor vapor retarder and underfloor insulation.

(e) **Rough framing inspection.** General building construction shall be inspected after all rough framing work is finished but before such work is covered or concealed.

(f) **Insulation and energy inspection.** Insulation and vapor barriers shall be inspected after installation is complete but prior to being covered or concealed.

(g) **Above ceiling inspection.** Work shall be inspected prior ceiling be covered or concealed.

(h) **Final inspection.** A final inspection shall be completed after all work included within the scope and application of this chapter is substantially complete but prior to the use or occupancy of the building or structure or portion thereof. The structure may not be occupied until a final inspection has been made that finds no critical violations of this code that could reasonably be expected to affect the health or safety of a person using the structure.

(5) HVAC inspections.

(a) **Rough inspection.** All HVAC equipment or systems installations which are thereafter to be concealed or covered, shall be inspected after rough work is finished but before such work is covered or concealed.

(b) **Gas piping pressure test required.** It is unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to place into operation any gas equipment installed or replaced until the piping installation has been tested, inspected and approved.

(c) **Final inspection.** All HVAC equipment or systems shall be inspected after installation is complete. Equipment information and operating manuals shall be provided to the inspector and owner. Equipment shall be tested and balanced before inspection is requested. A final HVAC inspection shall be completed after all work included within the scope and application of this chapter is substantially complete but prior to the use of the recently installed HVAC system and equipment or use and occupancy of the building or structure.

(6) Electrical inspections.

(a) **Notification to Inspector.** Upon completion of the wiring of any building, the person, firm, or corporation doing the work or receiving the permit shall notify the electrical inspector who shall make inspections within 2 business days for rough in work or 5 business days for final inspection after being notified. All electrical work shall be left exposed until such time as the inspector has completed his/her inspection. Inspections include:

1. **Electric service inspection.** Electric service installations, upgrades or changes shall be inspected and approved before the electric utility shall energize the service

2. **Under slab or under floor inspections.** The inspection of the basement floor or slab floor area before concrete is placed shall include the following: any required structural reinforcement, any underfloor electrical; any interior drain tile with base course; the structural base course for the floor slab if required; the underfloor vapor retarder and underfloor insulation.

3. **Rough inspection.** General building electrical wiring, equipment, conduit or any miscellaneous electrical installations shall be inspected after all rough work is finished but before such work is covered or concealed.

4. **Final electrical inspection.** A final electrical inspection shall be completed

after all work included within the scope and application of this chapter is complete but prior to the use of the recently installed electrical system and equipment or the use and occupancy of the building or structure.

(b) **Authority to disconnect electrical service.** The Building Inspector may cause the immediate disconnection of electrical power or service to any defective equipment or system where he or she finds determines that the installation creates imminent danger to persons or property or that such electrical power may interfere with the work of the fire department in emergency situations. No person shall reconnect any electrical equipment or service so disconnected until necessary repairs or alterations are completed and approval is granted by the Building Inspector. The Building Inspector may also cause the discontinuance of electrical service to any premises to which he or she is denied access or entry as set forth in this section.

(7) Plumbing Inspections.

(a) **Notification to Inspector.** No soil, waste, vent and water piping shall be used until inspected by the plumbing inspector. The plumber or property owner receiving the permit shall notify the plumbing inspector whenever any work is ready for inspection. The inspector shall thereupon make inspections within 2 business days for rough in work or 5 business days for final inspection after being notified that the materials and fixtures are set and ready for inspection. All plumbing work shall be left exposed until such time as the inspector has completed the inspection. The inspector may require the plumber or property owner receiving the permit to make a water or air test on the whole or any part of the entire installation. Inspections include:

1. **Building sewer and water service inspection.** The building sewer and water service lines shall be inspected during testing as set forth in Wis. Admin. Code section SPS 382.21 prior to being covered or concealed.

2. **Rough underground plumbing inspection.** The building drain and vent piping and water service lines shall be inspected during testing before covering with concrete as set forth in Wis. Admin. Code section SPS 382.21 prior to being covered or concealed.

3. **Rough interior plumbing inspection.** The building drain and vent piping and water service lines shall be inspected during testing as set forth in Wis. Admin. Code section SPS 382.21 prior to being covered or concealed.

4. **Final plumbing inspection.** A final plumbing inspection shall be completed after all work included within the scope and application of this chapter is complete but prior to the use of the recently installed plumbing system or equipment or the use and occupancy of the building or structure.

(8) **Re-inspections.** Any noncompliance items noted at the time of inspection shall be corrected and re-inspected before it is covered or concealed.

(9) **Voluntary inspections.** The Building Inspector may, at the request of the owner or

the lawful occupant, enter and inspect structures subject to the provisions of this code to ascertain compliance with this code.

(10) Inspections by ~~Chief Building Official~~~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~. The ~~Chief Building Official~~~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~ may inspect any building, structure, dwelling unit or equipment thereon which is reported or found to be damaged, dangerous, unsafe, a fire hazard, or unfit for human habitation.

(11) Inspector interference. Any person who interferes with the Building Inspector in the performance of his or her lawful duties where a permit has been issued shall be deemed guilty of a violation of this chapter and shall be subject to penalties and forfeitures as described in section 30.10.

30.06 Swimming Pools

(1) Location. No swimming pool shall be erected to the front of the residence of the owner or occupant of the premises connected therewith. In the case of lots bordered on two sides by public streets, no area between the setback lines of the main building and the street right-of-way line; in no case less than 5 feet from any lot line or building wall.

(2) Definitions:

(a) A swimming pool, within the meaning of this ordinance, shall be any depression in the ground, either temporary or permanent, or a container of water, either temporary or permanent, and either above or below the ground in which water of more than 12 inches in depth is contained and which is used primarily for the purpose of bathing or swimming, except temporary pools with an area of 177 square feet or less shall not come within the provision of this ordinance.

(b) A child of tender years, within the meaning of this ordinance, shall be any child who has not obtained the age of 10 years.

(3) Obligations of owners. Every person, every member of a partnership, and every corporation that owns, directly or indirectly, or operates or uses or has custody or control of or has the exclusive right to use any swimming pool located in the City of Stevens Point, shall erect and maintain a fence or suitable barrier around such swimming pool of such size and construction as to safeguard a child of tender years to prevent such child from falling into such swimming pool or shall install and maintain a cover or other protective device over such swimming pool. If a cover is utilized, it shall be of such design and material that the same can be securely fastened in place and be capable of supporting a person weighing 250 pounds without collapsing into the water. Such cover or other protective device shall be securely fastened in place at all times when the swimming pool is not in actual use for bathing or swimming purposes.

(4) Drainage from pools. No private swimming pool shall be constructed so as to allow water therefrom to drain into any sanitary sewer or septic tank, nor to overflow or

cause damage to any adjoining property. Provision may be made for draining the contents of any swimming pool into a storm sewer, but such installation shall be subject to prior approval of the Department of Natural Resources and Stevens Point Utilities. In all cases where a private swimming pool is to be constructed on premises served by a private sewage disposal system, approval of the Department of Health Services shall be necessary before the construction of any such pool may commence.

(5) Filtration. All private swimming pools must have a filtration system which assures proper circulation of the water therein and maintenance of the proper bacterial quality thereof. Such filtration system shall be properly maintained in good working order and kept in use at all times the swimming pool is filled with water.

(6) Periodic inspection. All installations of swimming pools, drains, or other equipment made under the provisions of this ordinance shall be subject to periodic inspection by the City of Stevens Point.

(7) Materials. All swimming pools of a permanent type shall have the sides and bottom of a smooth finish and no sand or dirt bottom shall be permitted.

(8) Aquariums. Every person, every member of a partnership and every corporation that owns, directly or indirectly, or operates or uses or has custody or control of or has the right to use any commercial aquarium sufficiently large enough to present a drowning hazard located in the City of Stevens Point shall erect and maintain a fence or suitable barrier around such aquarium of such size and construction as to safeguard a child of tender years to prevent such child from falling into such aquarium.

30.07 Regulations for Moving or Razing Buildings

(1) General. No person shall move any building or structure upon any of the public ways of the municipality or raze any building without first obtaining a permit therefor from the Building Inspector and upon payment of the required fee. Every such permit issued by the Building Inspector shall designate the route to be taken, the conditions to be complied with, and shall appropriately limit the time during which said operations shall be conducted.

(2) Continuous Movement. The movement of buildings shall be a continuous operation during all the hours of the day until such movement is fully completed. All of such operations shall be performed with the least possible obstruction to thoroughfares. No building shall be allowed to remain overnight upon any street crossing or intersection, or so near thereto as to prevent easy access to any fire hydrant or any other public facility. Lights shall be operated in conspicuous places at each end of the building during the night.

(3) Street Repair. Every person receiving a permit to move or raze a building shall, within one day after completion, report that fact to the Building Inspector who shall thereupon, in the company of the Public Works Director, inspect the streets and highways and ascertain their condition. If the removal or moving of said building has caused any damage to any street or highway, the person to whom the permit was

issued shall forthwith place them in as good repair as they were before the permit was granted. If such repairs are not completed within 30 days of the inspection, the City may undertake to cause such repairs to be made and assess the costs of such work to the person to whom the permit was issued.

(4) Utility Notification and Backfill. Before a building can be demolished or removed, the owner or agent shall notify all utilities having service connections within the building, such as water, electric, gas, sewer, and other connections. A permit to demolish or to remove a building shall not be closed until it is ascertained that utility service connections and appurtenant equipment, such as meters and regulators, have been removed or sealed and plugged in a safe manner. This is the responsibility of the owner or agent to complete and notify the Building Inspector.

(5) Disposal of material. Demolition materials must be properly handled, hauled and disposed of per Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources regulations.

(6) Conformance with Code. No permit shall be issued to move a building within or into the City of Stevens Point and to establish it upon a location therein until the Building Inspector has made an investigation of such building at the location from which it is to be moved, and is satisfied from such investigation that said building is in a sound and stable condition and of such construction that it will meet the requirements of this Building Code. For pre-fabricated structures, a copy of the plans for the structure may be substituted for the in-person investigation at the discretion of the Building Inspector. A complete plan of all further repairs, improvements, and remodeling with reference to such building shall be submitted to the Building Inspector, who shall determine whether such repairs, improvements, and remodeling once completed will be in conformity with the requirements of this Building Code. In the event a building is to be moved from the municipality to some point outside the boundaries thereof, the provisions with respect to the furnishing of plans and specifications for proposed alterations to such building may be disregarded.

(7) Bond.

(a) **Bond required.** Before a permit is issued to move or raze any building in this municipality, the party applying therefor shall provide a bond, cash deposit, or a letter of credit to the City in a sum to be determined by the Building Inspector and which shall not be less than Five Thousand (\$5,000) Dollars. Any such bond shall be executed by a corporate surety or two person sureties to be approved by the governing body or the Chief Building Official~~Building Inspection Superintendent~~. The permit applicant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City for any costs or expenses incurred by it in connection with any claims for damages to any person or property and the payment of any judgment together with the costs and expenses incurred by the municipality in connection therewith which arise out of the removal of the building for which the permit is issued and the completion of improvements to the property which the Building Inspector has required as a condition of granting the moving or razing permit.

(b) **Proximity to public thoroughfare.** Unless the Building Inspector finds that the excavation exposed by the removal of a building from its foundation is distant enough

from public thoroughfares to avoid creating a hazard for people and vehicles traveling thereupon and that the nature and physical characteristics of the premises and the exposed excavation do not present a hazard to children under 12 years of age, the bond required by (a) shall be further conditioned upon the permittee erecting adequate barriers around the excavation and within forty-eight (48) hours either filling in the excavation or employing other means, devices or methods approved by the Building Inspector to prevent hazards to the public. In any event, the excavation shall be filled with solid fill to match lot grade within 5 days of removal of the structure. Any excavation may be required to be protected with appropriate fences, barriers, and/or lights at the discretion of the Building Inspector.

(c) **Insurance.** In addition to the bond, cash deposit, or surety indicated in paragraph (a), the Building Inspector shall require liability insurance covering injury to one person in the sum of not less than One Hundred Thousand (\$100,000) Dollars and for one accident in a sum not less than Two Hundred Thousand (\$200,000) Dollars, together with property damage insurance in a sum not less than Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars, or such other coverage as reasonably deemed necessary and sufficient based upon the nature of the work being performed.

30.08 Building Numbering

(1) Proper entrance. A "proper entrance" shall be defined as that entrance which is designated by the Building Inspector as the main entrance from the exterior to the interior of said house or building which leads to the living quarters, storage, or office space inside of any building located in the City of Stevens Point. There shall be designated only one proper entrance for each residence and the only one proper entrance for each storage space or business office located in any one building.

(2) Placement and form of physical numbering signs. Buildings shall have approved address numbers placed in a position to be plainly legible and visible from the street fronting the property, and shall not be obstructed by any structural element, plant, tree, shrub, or similar obstruction. These address numbers shall contrast with their background, be Arabic numerals or alphabet letters, and such address numbers shall not be written out in script. If in the opinion of the Building Inspector, or his/her designee, the address numbers are difficult to identify, the Building Inspector may approve alternate locations and/or requirements in order to improve the visibility of the physical numbering signage. Specific building types shall have address numbers as follows:

(a) All single-family and two-family residential buildings shall have address numbers not less than two inches in height. Such address numbers shall be located within four feet of the primary entrance door on the street side where the building is addressed. If such building is located more than 40 feet from the front property line, the property owner must place and maintain the required numbers on a mailbox or a signpost located at or near the front property line.

(b) All multifamily buildings shall have address numbers not less than six inches in height. Such address numbers shall be located within four feet of the primary entrance door on the street side where the building is addressed. At the entrance of each access

drive for three or more buildings there shall be a directory listing of the address numbers and building identifications that are accessible from said street, service drive, or parking lot.

(c) All commercial or industrial buildings shall have address numbers not less than six inches in height. Such address numbers shall be located within four feet of the primary entrance door on the street side where the building is addressed.

(d) All multiple tenant buildings shall have address numbers not less than six inches in height. Such primary address numbers shall be located on the exterior wall of the building on the street side where the building is addressed. In addition, each tenant suite shall maintain a separate individual address numbers not less than six inches in height. Such address numbers shall be located within four feet of the primary tenant entrance door. Furthermore, if tenants have a rear service door, contrasting and reflective address numbers not less than six inches in height shall be located on each door.

(3) Enforcement. If the owner, occupant, or agent of any house or building fails to attach and maintain the proper number assigned to said house or building, the Building Inspector shall serve notice to the property owner requiring him to properly display his assigned number on the house or building within ten (10) days after the serving of said notice. If the property owner neglects to do so, he shall be deemed to have violated this ordinance.

30.09 Plumbing Service

(1) Drain Ends and Connections Guarded. The ends of all sewer and drain pipes not immediately connected shall be securely closed so as to prevent the introduction of sand or earth.

(2) Old Pipe Drain. Whenever necessary to disturb a drain or sewer in actual use, the same shall not be obstructed or disconnected without special permission of the plumbing inspector and it shall be unlawful to make any new connections with or extensions to any old drain without permission of the plumbing inspector.

(3) Obstruction of Drain Course. In all cases where the course of any sewer or stormwater drain is obstructed by water, gas, steam or other pipes or conduits, the question of passing over or under such obstruction or of the raising or lowering thereof so as to permit the construction and installation of the sewer or stormwater drain shall be determined by the plumbing inspector.

(4) Use of Sewers Regulated. No person shall deposit or permit to be deposited in any public sewer or stormwater drain or in any sewer or stormwater drain connecting with such public sewer or stormwater drain any garbage, gas, tar, grease, rags or any other substance likely to cause any obstruction nuisance or explosion therein or to do any act which may cause injury thereto. Any person who shall violate any provision of this section shall, in addition to the penalty hereinafter provided, be liable to the City for

any damages, costs to remedy, or other costs associated with the unlawful deposit of materials into the sewer or stormwater drain. Nothing contained in this section, however, shall prohibit the installation and operation of garbage disposal or any similar device used for grinding and pulverizing kitchen garbage and refuse and the disposal of the remnants thereof in the city sanitary sewage system, provided such installation is approved by the city plumbing inspector.

(5) Plumbing Inspector authority. The Plumbing Inspector shall have the authority to require installation of interceptors or other means of preventing prohibited substances including grease from entering the sewer system. The Inspector shall have the authority to require regular maintenance of grease interceptors and may require the regular reporting of such maintenance to the City. Failure to install, maintain or to submit the required reports shall subject the owner to penalties as provided herein.

(6) Privies, Drywells Prohibited. No privy or privy vault or private sewage system or like appliance shall be constructed when a public sewer is available. All abandoned drywells, septic or other sewage tanks and privy vaults shall be cleaned and refilled with earth.

(7) Injury to Sewers, etc. Any person who shall intentionally, willfully, or maliciously injure or obstruct any sewer, house drain, catch basin or any plumbing fixture or apparatus pipes or other parts of any plumbing in a public building, or any sewer, water, or gas pipes or any parts or apparatus connected therewith, laid or constructed in the alleys, streets, or other public places, or under any sidewalks of the City of Stevens Point shall be subject to the penalty prescribed for violations of this Chapter.

(8) Water Service and Distribution.

Disconnection and Resumption of Service

(a) No plumber or unauthorized person shall turn on or leave open any water service curb stop after the completion and trial of his/her work which has been turned off by the water department. No plumber or unauthorized person shall turn on or off water after it has been turned on or off from a given service, nor shall any one turn water off or on at the main without a permit.

(b) No water service will be turned on or shall a meter be set by the water department until the work has been approved and an order signed by the plumbing inspector that the plumbing installation is satisfactory, except that permission may be given by the plumbing inspector in cases of new construction for a temporary turn on during the period of construction. It shall be unlawful for any person other than an authorized person of the water department to set a water meter.

30.10 Penalties

(1) General. It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, use, occupy, or maintain any building or structure in violation of any provisions of this Code, or to violate any other provisions, or to cause, permit or suffer any such violations to be committed. Any

person violating any of the provisions of this Chapter shall, upon conviction, be subject to a forfeiture of not less than Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) and not more than ~~One ThoudandFive-Hundred~~ Dollars (\$~~1,0500~~), together with all applicable costs and surcharges and, in default of payment thereof, shall be imprisoned for a period of not less than one (1) day or more than six (6) months or until such forfeiture and costs are paid. It shall be the responsibility of the offender to abate the violation as expeditiously as possible, and each day that such violation is permitted to continue shall constitute a separate offense. In any court action or legal proceeding, the fact that a permit was issued shall not constitute a defense, nor shall any error, oversight or dereliction of duty on the part of the Building Inspector constitute a defense.

(2) Work started without permit: When a permit is required by this code and work is started prior to obtaining such permit, the fees required for the permit shall be doubled. For the second offense against an applicant within a twelve (12) month period, starting work prior to obtaining a permit, the fee shall be quintupled. For the third such and subsequent offenses within a twelve (12) month period, the fees shall again be quintupled compounding. The payment of such doubled or quintupled fee shall not relieve any person from complying with the requirements of this code, or from any additional penalties proscribed herein.

(3) Failure to call for inspections. It shall be the responsibility of the permit applicant, owner or an authorized representative to contact the Building Inspector when inspections are needed. Applicants failing to contact the Building Inspector at the appropriate times may be assessed a penalty fee in the amount indicated on the most recently adopted city council fee schedule. For the second offense within a twelve (12) month period, failing to call for the required inspections, the fee shall be quintupled. For the third such and subsequent offenses within a twelve (12) month period, the fees shall again be quintupled compounding. The payment of such doubled or quintupled fee shall not relieve any person from complying with the requirements of this code, or from any additional penalties proscribed herein.

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE REVISED MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF STEVENS POINT, WISCONSIN

The Common Council of the City of Stevens Point do ordain as follows:

SECTION I: That Section 16.06 of the Revised Municipal Code, Snow and Ice Removal, is hereby **amended** to read as follows:

16.06 SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL

(1) Removal from Sidewalks. The owner, occupant, tenant, or person in charge (collectively, the "Responsible Person") of any parcel adjacent to a city sidewalk shall maintain such sidewalk in a reasonably snow and ice-free condition, which on corner lots shall include the sidewalk or ramps extending to the street. When ice has formed on any sidewalk that cannot be removed with reasonable effort, the Responsible Person shall keep the same in a non-slip condition with salt, sand, or other suitable and appropriate substances in such manner as to prevent the ice from being a slip hazard or dangerous. In the event of a measurable snowfall event as indicated by the local National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration weather station located at the Stevens Point Municipal Airport, accumulated snow shall be removed from the abutting sidewalk by the owner or occupant of any premises within twenty-four (24) hours after the snow ceases to fall, except on those streets or portions thereof where no boulevard is located, in which case snow shall be removed within 48 hours. The Responsible Person shall also maintain sidewalks reasonably free of drifting and windblown snow, so as to provide for safe use of the sidewalk by all users, including those using wheelchairs or other adaptive equipment. On sidewalks of substandard width where no boulevard is present, snow shall be removed within five days of the snowfall event.

(2) City May Remove and Place on Tax roll. If the Responsible Person fails to remove the snow or ice in accordance with Subsection 16.06(1), the city inspection department shall cause such snow and/or to be abated without notice to the property owner. When completed, the city shall prepare a bill of costs incurred for such snow and ice abatement, indicating the address or legal description of the real estate adjacent to which the work was performed. and provide this bill to the property owner of record via mail. If the cost of removal is not paid within the timetable indicated on such bill, it shall be placed in the next tax roll as a special charge pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 66.0627.

(3) No owner, occupant, or person shall place any snow or ice on or into any sidewalk, street, or alley without permission from the Public Works Director.

SECTION II: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication, as provided by law.

APPROVED: _____
Mike Wiza, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kari Yenter, City Clerk

Dated: February 6, 2024
Approved: February 19, 2024
Published: February 23, 2024

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE REVISED MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF STEVENS POINT, WISCONSIN

The Common Council of the City of Stevens Point do ordain as follows:

SECTION I: That Section 16.06 of the Revised Municipal Code, Snow and Ice Removal, is hereby **amended** to read as follows:

16.06 SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL

(1) Removal from Sidewalks. The owner, occupant, tenant, or person in charge (collectively, the "Responsible Person") of any ~~building fronting upon or adjoining any street, and the owner or person in charge of an unoccupied dwelling or lot fronting as aforesaid parcel adjacent to a city sidewalk,~~ shall maintain such sidewalk in a reasonably snow and ice-free condition~~clean the sidewalk in front of or adjoining such building, or unoccupied lot or dwelling,~~ which on corner lots shall include the sidewalk or ramps extending to the street, ~~of snow and ice from such sidewalk and cause same to be kept clear of snow and ice.,~~ provided that wWhen ice has formed on any sidewalk ~~that it cannot be removed~~that cannot be removed with reasonable effort, the ~~persons herein referred to~~Responsible Person shall keep the same in a non-slip conditions~~sprinkled with salt, sand, ashes, sawdust, or other suitable and appropriate substances in such manner as to prevent the ice from being a slip hazard or dangerous sand.~~ In the event of a measurable snowfall event~~storm~~ as indicated by the local National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration weather station located at the Stevens Point Municipal Airport, accumulated snow shall be removed from the abutting sidewalk by the owner or occupant of any premises within twenty-four (24) hours after the snow ceases to fall, except on those streets or portions thereof where no boulevard is located, in which case snow shall be removed within 48 hours. The Responsible Person shall also maintain sidewalks reasonably free of drifting and windblown snow, so as to provide for safe use of the sidewalk by all users, including those using wheelchairs or other adaptive equipment. On sidewalks of substandard width where no boulevard is present, snow shall be removed within five days of the snowfall event.~~Also excepting on those streets or portions thereof in areas where a substandard width sidewalk with no boulevard is located, in which case snow shall be removed within 120 hours.~~

(2) City May Remove and Place on Tax roll. ~~Whenever If the owner or occupant~~Responsible Person of any lot or premises shall neglect or fails to remove the snow or ice ~~in front of the same~~in accordance with Subsection 16.06(1), in regard to the hours specified above, the city inspection department shall cause such snow and/or to be ~~removed~~abated without notice to the property owner, ~~provided that when ice has so formed on any sidewalk that it cannot be removed, the same shall be sprinkled with sand.,~~ and wWhen completed, the city ~~clerk~~ shall prepare a bill of costs incurred thereof for such snow and ice abatement, ~~describing indicating the address or legal description of the real estate in front of adjacent to which the work was performed is done,;~~ and provide this bill to the property owner of record via mail. If the cost of removal is not paid within the timetable indicated on such bill, it shall be placed in the next tax roll ~~by the clerk in a separate column to be called "snow removal" and the same shall be collected in the like manner as other taxes are collected~~as a special charge pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 66.0627.

(3) No owner, occupant, or person shall place any snow or ice on or into any sidewalk, street, or alley without permission from the Public Works Director.

SECTION II: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication, as provided by law.

APPROVED: _____
Mike Wiza, Mayor

ATTEST: _____
Kari Yenter, City Clerk

Dated: February 6, 2024
Approved: February 19, 2024
Published: February 23, 2024